
' ' 

SURVEY 

OF PUBLICLY OWNED PROPERTIES IN WOODBRIDGE, CONNECTICUT 

Initially designed by 
Wilbur Land and 
Susannah Scully for 
The Commission on the 
Use ofPublicly Owned 
Properties in Woodbridge. 

-- 1982 --

Composed and compiled by 
Susannah Scully, Chairman, 
Commission on the Use of 
Publicly Owned Properties 
Typed by Gerry Shaw and 
Kathy Wilcox. Proof-read 
by the Commission and 
Sally Rogers. 





INITIAL CHARGE OF THE COMMISSION ON THE USE OF PUBLICLY OWNED PROPERTIES 

BE IT ORDAINED THAT: 

1. There is hereby created the Commission on Use of 
Publicly OWned Proper~y to consist of Six (6) members to 
be appointed by the Board of Selectmen to serve a term of 
Three (3) years from July 1, and until their successors 
shall have been appointed and qualifi2d. In addition there 
shall be ~~o (2) ex-officio members, One (1) selected by the 
Town Planning and Zoning Commission and One (1) selected by 
the Conservation Commission from their respective memberships. 

2. The original terms shall be so fixed so that Two (2) 
members shall be appointed to serve a term of One (1) year, 
Two (2) for Two (2} years, and Two (2) for Three (3) years 
and their successors shall serve for terms of Three (3) 
years each. 

3. The Commission shall organize itself by electing a 
Chairman, Vice-Chairman and Secretary from its membership 
and by adopting rules and by-laws for the conduct of its 
business. 

4. The Commission shall classify all publicly owned 
property or property affected with a public interest in 
the f~llcwing categories: 

a. Land and buildings dedicated to open space 
or other use under the terms of grants-in­
aid conditions; 

b. Land and buildings, the uses of which are 
now under the direction of ~~isting con~issions 
or other agencies of the Town; 

c. Land and buildings, the uses of which are not 
under the direction of existing commissions 
or other agencies of the Town; 

d. Land and buildings to which Town had the 
option to purchase andfor right of first 
refusal. 

s. It shall be the duty of the Commission to study the 
uses of all such land and buildings from time to time and to 
study and recommend to the Board of Selectmen the acquisition 
by purchase or otherwise, uses, changes in uses, or, direc­
tion of such uses by appropriate commissions or agencies now 
existing or to be created; with such expert advise, research 
resources and assistance as it shall deem appropriate to 
such duties. 

ii. 



All such Town agencies and commissions administering, 
using or affecting such land and buildings shall report to 
the Commission as required by it. 

6. The Commission shall submit a report of its study, 
findings and recommendations in writing to the Board of 
Selectmen on or before January 31st of each year. 

iii. 



COMMITTEE SITTING THAT CHARGED THE COMMISSION 

Theodore Clark, First Selectman 

Guido Calabresi 

Christine H. Donaldson 

Katharine Nangle 

Russell B. Stoddard 

iv. 



RULES AND BY -LAWS 

COt1MISSION ON USE OF PUBLICLY OWNED PROPERTY 

Town of Woodbridge, Connecticut 

Meetings 

The Commission shall hold not less than three meetings 
in each calendar year and such additional meetings as may 
be called by the Chairperson. The Chairperson shall call 
a meeting whenever requested to do so by two members of 
the Commission or by the Board of Selectmen. 

Notice of Meetings 

Reasonable notice of meetings, written or oral, shall 
be given to each member of the Corr~ission. The presence 
of a member of the Commission at a Commission meeting shall 
constitute a waiver of any defect in the notice of the 
meeting pertaining to such member. 

Vote Required; Quorum 

Recommendations to the Board of Selectmen. as orescribed 
by paragraphs 5 and 6 of the ordinance creating this Commission 
shall ::=ecuire the affirmative vote of not less than four 
members of the Co~~ission at a meeting, the notice of which 
includes a warning that such recommendations will be voted 
upon. For any other business of the Commission, four members 
shall constitute a quorum, and actions may be taken by a 
majority vote. 

vi. 



COMMISSION ON THE USE OF PUBLICLY OWNED PROPERTIES 

WOODBRIDGE, CONNECTICUT 

The survey of Town-owned property shows that of the 
almost 12,000 acres in Woodbridge, the Town owns 
about 444 or 4%, of which 175 or 1.5% are in the 
Center. 

PUBLICLY OWNED PROPERTIES IN THE CENTER OF WOODBRIDGE - c.l75 acres 
The Center Triangle, bounded by Meetinghouse Lane, 

Center and Newton Roads; including The Center, 
the Firehouse and Library; c. 9 acres. 

The Fitzgerald Tract, corner of Center and Beecher 
Roads, 133+/- acres. 

The Hoffmann Piece, corner of Center and Newton Roads, 
opposite the Library, 5.9 acres. 

The Rice Property, Center Road, bordering Center Field 
and including pond, c.9 acres. 

The Town Hall-Center Field Tract, Meetinghouse Lane 
and Center Road, 17 1/2 acres. 

OUTLYING TRACTS OF PUBLICLY OWNED PROPERTIES - one or more acres 
Acorn Hill Landfill - Haddad-Tinari Property, Acorn Hill 

Road, 60.5 acres. 
Beecher Road School, Beecher Road, 25 acres 
Bethany, Orange & Woodbridge Regional Dog Pound, Bradley 

Road, 1.08 +/- acres. 
The Thomas Darling - G. Halstead Bishop Estate Property, 

East and West, Litchfield Turnpike, c. 152 acres 
1840 Litchfield Turnpike, c. 1 acre 
The Lucy/Mettler Streets Property, site of the Old 

Warner School, 2.02 acres 
The Meiss Property, Rimmon Road 16.5 acres 
The Northwest Cemetery, Seymour Road, c. 3 acres 
The Old Derby Trail, west of and off lower Amity Road, 

15 +/- acres. 
Sperry Park and Henry C. Hickox Memorial Park, Sperry 

Road, combined 5.88 acres 
Triangle, corner of Ford, Northrop, and Old Westward Roads, 

1.16 acres 
West River Field, South Bradley Road, 7.07 acres. 

PUBLICLY OWNED PROPERTIES - of less than one acre 
Piece on Manilla Avenue, c. 60' x 100' 
The Old South School-now used by the Knights of Columbus, 

Johnson Road, .17 acres 

PUBLICLY OWNED PROPERTIES - for drainage or vehicular rights of way 
Dogwood Circle, a drainage right of way, .04 acre 
Laurel Road, a future highway right of way, .32 acre 
Lorraine Drive, a future highway right of way, .4 acre 

vii. 



PUBLICLY OWNED PROPERTIES ON PAPER STREETS 
Selden Terrace, west of lower Amity Road, .21 acre 
View Place, west of lower Amity Road, .16 acre 
"Woodbridge Heights," off South Please Road, scattered 

lots, 25' x 100• 

PUBLICLY OWNED PROPERTIES - bought with aid of federal and/or 
state grants for "conservation, r~~creation and open space 
purposes'' 

Acorn Hill Landfill, Acorn Hill Road, with 40% state 
aid, no federal aid 

The Thomas Darling-G. Halstead Bishop Estate Property, 
East and West, Litchfield Turnpike, each with SO% 
federal and 25% state aid 

PUBLICLY OWNED PROPERTIES WITH HISTORIC INTEREST FOR THE TOWN 
The Thomas Darling-G. Halstead Bishop Estate Property, 

East and West, including the Thomas Darling house 
and barns 

The 1911 Kindergarten, originally built on Lucy Street, 
now dismantled and stored in the Thomas Darling 
barns 

The Old Derby Trail, west of lower Amity Road 
The Old South School, now used by the Knights of 

Columbus, Johnson Road 
The Northwest Cemetery, Seymour Road 
Sperry Park, Sperry Road 

PUBLICLY OWNED PROPERTIES DEVOTED IN WHOLE OR IN PART TO 
RECREATION 

Acorn Hill Landfill, Acorn Hill Road - deed restricted 
for conservation and recreation 

Beecher Road School, Beecher Road 
The Center, Meetinghouse Lane 
Center Field, Center Road, under control of the 

Recreation Commission 
The Thomas Darling-G. Halstead Bishop Estate Property, 

East and West, Litchfield Turnpike - most of it 
dedicated for conservation, recreation and open 
space 

Sperry and Henry c. Hickox Parks, Sperry Road 
West River Field, South Bradley Road - under control of 

the Recreation Commission 

PUBLICLY OWNED PROPERTIES SUBJECT TO GRANTS-IN-AID CONDITIONS 
Acorn Hill Landfill, Acorn Hill Road 
The Thomas Darling-G. Halstead Bishop Estate Property, 

East and West, Litchfield Turnpike 

PUBLICLY OWNED PROPERTIES SUBJECT TO OTHER EXISTING DEED 
RESTRICTIONS (1982) 

Bethany, Orange and Woodbridge Dog Pound, Bradley Road 
Lucy/Mettler Streets Property 
Sperry Park, Sperry Road 

viii. 



ALL PUBLICLY OWNED PROPERTIES ARE UNDER THE MANAGEMENT OF THE 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN. USE OR DISPOSITION OF PUBLICLY OWNED 
PROPERTIES ARE SUBJECT TO THE VOTE OF TOWN MEETINGS. THE 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN HAS DELEGATED AUTHORITY OVER THE FOLLOWING 
PROPERTIES TO THE FOLLOWING BOARDS, COMMISSIONS OR GROUPS. 

Beecher School, Beecher Road - the Board of Education, 
Recreation Commission 

Center Field, Center Road - the Recreation Commission 
Clark Memorial Library, Newton Road - Library Board 

of Directors 
The Thomas Darling-G. Halstead Bishop Estate Property -

part of both East and West parts to the Amity & 
Woodbridge Historical Society as agent of the 
Board of Selectmen; and non-exclusive use of part 
of the West piece for a Boy Scout campsite. 

Fire House, corner of Newton and Center Roads - Fire 
Commissioners 

Police Headquarters, The Center, Meetinghouse Lane -
the Police Commission 

Sperry Park, Sperry Road - Sperry Park Commission 
West River Field, South Bradley Road - the Recreation 

Commission 

PROPERTIES AFFECTED BY THE PUBLIC INTEREST 

2/82 

A. Property subject to Town option to acquire 
1. Ansonia-Derby Water Company- western side 

of Town 
2. Connecticut Light and Power Company - throughout 

the Town 
3. New Haven Water Company- north and eastern 

part of Town; also southwestern part of Town 
4. United Illuminating Company - primarily the 

southern part of Town 

B. Other 
1. Alice Newton Street Park 
2. Amity Regional High School 
3. Conservation Trust Properties 

ix. 



SEQUENTIAL ACQUISITION OF TOWN-OWNED PROPERTIES IN WOODBRIDGE 

--1982--

The apparent existence and use of the Northwest 
Cemetery pre-dates the incorporation of 
Woodbridge in 1784. No deed for the property 
exists in the Town Clerk's office. 

1866 Old South School, Johnson Road -- bought for 
school purposes 

1907 Sperry Park, Sperry Road -- given as a Park 

1911 "Little Lucy" Kindergarten Property, Lucy Street-­
given for use as a school site. Adjacent land on 
both Lucy and Mettler Streets was acquired through 
ten separate deeds between 1911 and 1947 

1919 Town Hall Property, Meetinghouse Lane for $500.00 
for 1/2 acre 

1921, 1926 
& 1930 The Center Triangle - 1 3/4 acres 

1930 and 
thereafter-Scattered parcels of c. 25' x 100' in "Woodbridge 

Heights", claimed in 1925 to be 'New Haven's 
finest Residential Suburb', South Pease Road 

1936 

1941 & 
1944 

1942 

1946 

1947 & 
1948 

1955 

Old Derby Trail, west of lower Amity Road 

Two contiguous parcels on Selden Terrace, west of 
lower Amity Road 

1840 Litchfield Turnpike, corner of Bond Road 

Center Field Area, Center Road $11,025.00 

West River Field, South Bradley Road 

Henry C. Hickox Memorial Park, Sperry Road, 
contiguous with Sperry Park 

x. 



SEQUENTIAL ACQUISITION OF TOWN-OWNED PROPERTIES IN WOODBRIDGE 

1959 Beecher Road School Property, Beecher Road 

1963 The Meiss Property, Rimmon Road 

1965 The Hoffmann Piece, Center and Newton Roads 

1967 The Rice Property, house and pond, Center Road 

Thomas Darling - G. Halstead Bishop Estate, 
east of Litchfield Turnpike 

1968 Second property for Beecher School, Beecher Road 

1968 Haddad Property - Acorn Hill Landfill, Acorn 
Hill Road 

1969 Property for use as the Regional Dog Pound, 
Bradley Road 

1973 Thomas Darling - G. Halstead Bishop Estate, 
west of Litchfield Turnpike, two pieces 

1973 The Fitzgerald Property, Center and Beecher 
Roads 

1973 Dogwood Circle, Laurel Road, and Lorraine Drive 
properties 

1974 The Olsen Property, west of Litchfield Turnpike, 
joining the two Darling-Bishop properties, west 
of the Turnpike 

1979 Triangle - Ford, Northrop, and Old Westward Roads 

Vol 88 299 5/29/68 

504 6/28/68 

xi. 






































































































































































































































